1: 06: 13 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
FI RST SPECI AL SESSI ON
April 30, 2015
1:06 p.m

Neurman called the House Finance Commttee neeting

to order at 1:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Mar k Neunman, Co-Chair
St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis
David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Cat hy Munoz

Pete Ecklund, Staff, Representative Mark Neunan; Pat
Pitney, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget, Ofice
of the Governor; Sheldon Fisher, Conm ssioner, Departnent
of Admi ni strati on; Val erie Davi dson, Conmi ssi oner,
Department of Health and Social Services; Sana Efird,
Assi stant Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces; Mar k Lui ken, Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities; Representative Sam

Kito 111;
Til ton.

SUMVARY

HB 1001

House Fi nance Committee 1

Representative Dan Otiz;

Representative Cathy

APPROP: OPER. BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS/ AM APPRO

04/30/15 1: 06 P.M



HB 1001 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#hb1001
HOUSE BILL NO. 1001

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for

certain pr ogr ans, capitalizing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, nmaking capital appropriations, and
maki ng appropriations wunder art. 1X  sec. 17(c),

Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for
an effective date."

1: 06: 39 PM

Co- Chair Neunman explained that the neeting would entail a
high level overview of the new Conmmttee Substitute (CS)
for HB 1001. He instructed conmttee mnmenbers to submt
witten questions that would be addressed during the next
nmeeti ng.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE MARK NEUMAN, reviewed
the changes in the new CS. He directed attention to the
"2015 Legislature OQOperating Budget Agency Sunmary FY16
Conference Structure" (copy on file) that contained the
nunbers and | anguage sections summary of unrestricted
general funds (UG) in HB 1001. He cited the totals |isted
in colum one: Statewide total of $54.954.5 nmillion and
Fund Transfers of $39 nillion, and noted that the CS

cont ai ned approxi mat el y $94 mllion of addi ti ona
unrestricted general funds. He turned to the nunbers and
| anguage  sections al | f unds summary titled, "2015

Legi sl ature Operating Budget Agency Sunmary FY16 Conference
Structure” (copy on file) and pointed to colum one that
identified $217.660 mllion of new spending above the
adopted Conference Committee Substitute (CCS) [CCS HB 72]
oper ati ng budget totals.

Co-Chair Neuman interjected that the four colums specified
t he additional funding by departnent and type of funding.

Representative WIson asked whether the summary was the
difference between the CCS and the new CS and wondered
whet her addi tional nobney above the $217.660 mllion and $94
mllion was added.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



M. Ecklund explained that contained in both sunmaries the

Departnment of Corrections (DOC) |listed a savings of
$4.108.2 mllion, which reflected the Mdicaid expansion
portion of the CS. The net increase in the bill was

$217.660 mllion of all funds.

Representative WIson pointed out that the CS contained
"new nunbers that do not show up because of the Medicaid
expansi on decrease.” Co-Chair Neuman offered that the
Medi cai d expansion discussion would occur in depth next
week. Representative WIson asked whether the commttee
woul d re-examne the entire operating budget or only the
increases in the CS version. Co-Chair Neuman expl ai ned that
presently, the commttee was reviewng the CS which
contai ned the differences between the conference conmttee
nunbers and the governor's new bill.

1:12: 43 PM

M. Ecklund referred to section 5 of the governor's version
of HB 1001 which reflected the Medicaid expansion portion
He observed that the section contained negative and
positive spending appropriations; the negative nunbers
refl ected savings.

Representative Gara referred to the UG- sunmary "Non-
Additive Itens, Fund Transfers" listing and asked why the
fund transfers nunber ($39 nillion) was added to the UGF
total of $54.954.5 mllion. M. Ecklund responded that the
amount reflected $39 mllion of new general fund spending
which necessitated an appropriation into the public
educat i on f und. Representati ve Gara asked for
clarification. M. Ecklund responded that on page 15,
Section 7 of the CS, a fund transfer of $118 nillion was
appropriated from the instate natural gas pipeline fund to
the public education fund. He detailed that the CCS
transferred $157 mllion from the pipeline fund and the
difference of $39 nmllion reflected in the CS was
appropriated fromgeneral fund doll ars.

Representative Gattis comented about the CS. She wondered
why the CS only contained the changes between the CCS and
the governor's version of HB 1001. Co- Chair  Neunman
reiterated that the bill reflected the differences between
the CCS and the governor's version of HB 1001. He enphasi zed
that the CS only contained the differences.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Representative Gara announced that the governor did not
work with the Mnority when drafting HB 1001

Vice-Chair Saddler assuned that CCS HB 72 [ APPROP
OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS] woul d becone | aw and what ever
proposed changes that were adopted would be rolled into HB
72. Co-Chair Neuman answered in the affirmative.

1:18: 12 PM

Representative Gattis expressed her struggle to understand
the strategy with proposing the Conmittee Substitute. She
asked whet her what ever changes were adopted would be rolled
into HB 72. Co-Chair Neuman restated that the CS only
contained the governor's requested changes to streanline
the process and make it "easier to understand” and would be
rolled into CCS HB 72.

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, expressed her appreciation for the
work of the Legislative Finance Division, M. Ecklund, and
Joan Brown from Co-Chair Neuman's staff on the new CS
version of HB 1001. She explained that the new Committee
Substitute outlined the governor's priorities and was a
"much sinpler approach”™ to the process. The intent of HB
1001 was to keep budget negotiations ongoing. She stated
that the budget included funding for education, Medicaid
expansi on, and adjusted for itens that were "cut too far
and would have a substanti al i mpact™ on gover nnent
operations. She enphasized that the legislation was a
vehicle to keep discussions going and work towards a
"funded budget." She announced that the adm nistration was
"flexible"™ in its goal to achieve a funded budget and
willing to work together to reach a conprom se.

Representative Gattis voiced that she did not hear M.
Pitney say that "this was the only thing on the table". She
inquired whether everything in the budget was open for
di scussion. Co-Chair Neuman answered that the itens in the
CS were contained in the governor's version but in a rmnuch
sinpler form

1:25:14 PM

Ms. Pitney spoke to the Cost O Living Adjustnents (COLA)
included in the CS for union enpl oyees:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



St at e-wi de Unal | ocat ed Appropriation Tot al :
$35, 367, 600.

Ms. Pitney explained that one of the changes in the CS
version was to leave the funding and |anguage intact for
the bargaining unit's wunion contracts and naintain the
ability to engage in "good faith" negotiations to gain
concessi ons r at her t han br eak contracts W th t he
under standi ng that non-union enployees would not receive
pay rai ses.

Co- Chair Neunman noted that the appropriation was found on
line 32, pages 3 through 4 of the |egislation.

SHELDON FI SHER, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON
expl ained that he intended to "aggressively" negotiate the
contracts as they expire. Presently, the Departnent of
Adm nistration (DOA) was in the process of negotiating with
bar gai ni ng units representing approxi matel y 17, 000
enployees and wth other units representing 10,500
enpl oyees set to expire within the next 12 nonths. He
related that the admnistration believed in honoring the
commitments that were already nade and funded the COLAS
(Cost O Living Adjustnents).

Co- Chair Neuman tal ked about the passionate discussions on
the floor about the state facing huge deficits and the
| egi sl ators support for state enployees. However, in |ight
of the deficits the l|egislature adopted provisions that
denied pay increases for both union and non-union
enpl oyees. He recounted that the 2.5 percent pay increases
were negotiated three years ago. He wondered why it was so
inmportant for the administration to increase the budget by
funding pay raises when the state was facing severe
deficits. Conmm ssioner Fisher thought that as contracts
expired the state should negotiate a new salary schedul e.
He believed that the state should honor the contracts and
commtnments that were previously negotiated in good faith
in order to maintain a sense of trust with the bargaining
units.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked whether there could be |Iegal
repercussions from denying the non-union enployees their
COLA while giving it to the union enployees. Conmm ssioner
Fisher replied that each enployee group has its own
"structure” and he believed that there was no |ega
l[iability. Vice-Chair Saddler wondered about the noral

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



effects of denying the COLA to the exenpt enployees.
Comm ssioner Fisher related that over the long-term the
state had been fair and equitable to both the union and
exenpt units and intended to continue to do so.

1: 32: 17 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler surmsed that increases would be given
to union enployees and that 1in the future non-union
enpl oyees would receive a COLA Comm ssi oner  Fi sher
responded that historically, there were years when the
exenpt enployees were given the COLA and union enployees
were not and vice versa. He felt that differences existed
bet ween negotiated outcones over the two groups in any
given year but when exanmined over the long-term benefits
were consistently fair.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked for clarification on the plan
going forward. He discerned that, in fairness, the
departnment intended to give the exenpt enployees a raise

Comm ssioner Fisher was not prepared to answer the
guestion. Vice-Chair Saddler restated his question about
exenpt enployee norale. Commi ssioner Fisher believed that
the non-union enployees generally understood the state's
predicanent. He indicated that all enployees wll be
"“chal | enged” and feel stress under the fiscal crisis. He
did not feel that the present proposal would have "a
dramatic inpact on norale above and beyond the stressful
envi ronnent of which we are operating under.™

Co-Chair Neuman rem nded nenbers that there would be nore
detailed information provided in future neetings. He
requested that menbers ask question in line wth
"information gathering” for their witten questions for
nore in-depth answers in a future neeting.

Representative W/Ison understood what Comm ssioner Fisher
was sayi ng. She conveyed that denying the raises was a way
to spread out the cuts over the departnents so nore
enpl oyees could keep their jobs. She believed that the CCOLA
was negotiated in good faith w thout the know edge of how
low oil prices would decline. She wanted to understand the
negoti ation process better for future decision nmaking to
avoid a simlar situation in the future. Comm ssioner
Fisher indicated that in the future contracts would be
negotiated with nore flexibility with the future in mnd

such as the ability to reopen negotiations with a change in
oi | prices.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Representative WIlson wanted to better understand not only
salary issues, but also the step increases, heal t h
i nsurance, and other benefits in regards to contract
negoti ati ons.

1: 37: 55 PM

Representative Gattis felt that granting the COLA increase
was sending enployees "the wong nessage"” and hoped that
peopl e realized the situation the state was facing.

Representative Gara was confused about which of the
contracts were included in the legislation. He agreed with
the concerns over norale issues related to denying a
"statutory" pay increase. He asked whether the union
contracts that were negotiated but not yet approved by the
| egislature was included in the bill. Conm ssioner Fisher
replied that he needed to confirm whether the contracts
referred to were included in the legislation. He did not
bel i eve so.

Co-Chair Neuman requested a historical conparative of
sal ary increases.

Representative Gara asked whether the COLAS that were
negotiated in the past were also renoved by the |egislature
in the CCS. Comm ssi oner Fi sher responded in the
affirmati ve.

Representative Pruitt asked what would happen if the
| egi sl ature chose not to fund the contracts. He wondered
how the admnistration would handle that scenari o.
Comm ssioner Fisher stated that the admnistration would
honor the <contracts. In the absence of funding, each
departrment would identify the amount of funding for the
raises and find it in savings. He mmintained that there
woul d be additional |ayoffs under the unfunded scenari o.

Representative Pruitt asked for perspective on future
expectations in the upconmng negotiations. Comr ssioner
Fi sher agreed with the request.

1:43: 41 PM

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er asked whether the governor had conmtted
to signing CCS HB 72 as adopted by the legislature into | aw
and that HB 1001 would be an addendum to HB 72. Ms. Pitney

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



responded that the current budget was "unfunded" and the
governor had not commtted to signing "anything."

Representative Edgnon stated that the governor's intent of
the bill was to create a pathway for achieving a three
guarter vote in order to attain a Constitutional Budget
Reserve (CBR) draw in the House of Representatives. M.
Pitney responded in the affirmative.

Ms. Pitney addressed page 2 of the bill starting with the
line itenms for the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent ( DEED):

Teachi ng and Learning Support Total: $2,599, 700
Al aska Learning Network $599, 700
Pre-Ki ndergarten Grants $2, 000, 000

Ms. Pitney explained that DEED was the "hardest hit" in the
CCS budget. The non-fornul a conponents were decreased by $18
mllion, which reflected a 31 percent decrease in general
funds. The inclusion of the funds still represented a 26
percent decrease in non-formula funding. She comented that
all of the itens except for one in HB 1001 was include in
the governor's original budget which included $250 nmillion
i n budget reductions. She expounded that the Al aska Learning
Network provided distance education nostly to rural
comunities in the form of courses that were required for
t he Al aska Performance Schol arship (APS) Schol ar shi p.

Representative Gattis commented that the funding in the CS
was actually additional funding rather than just less of a
reducti on.

Representative WIlson asked why the itens were the
governor's priority and why reductions were not found
somepl ace else as an offset to the increases. M. Pitney
mai ntai ned that the admnistration felt the unfunded itens
woul d cause "nore danmage than necessary." She reiterated
that the legislation was a vehicle to bring the parties
together in negotiations to achieve a funded budget.

Co-Chair Neuman interjected that the itens in the CS were
itens the governor believed were inportant enough to add
back into the budget. M. Pitney concurred wth the
statement .

1:51: 46 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Representative WIson enphasized that every item was
"vetted in subconmittee and there were reasons"” for their
renoval . She wondered why the governor deened the
subconm ttees were wong in their choices and what Al askans
would lose if the itens were not funded. She opined that
all she heard was that the itens were the governor's
priority and the funding should be added back into the
budget .

Ms. Pitney affirnmed that the itenms were the priority of the
governor and acknowl edged that it was the right of the
|l egislature to appropriate funds and welconed the
di scussion regarding funding the governor's priorities.

Vice-Chair Saddler reported that the governor indicated he
woul d decrease the budget 16 percent, if elected, during
his el ection canpaign. He requested a reconciliation of the
governor's current priorities that he believed represented
a "dramatic shift" fromhis priorities during his canpaign
He wondered how adding spending was a "tool" to achieve a
funded budget under the circunstances.

Co-Chair Neuman asked Vice-Chair Saddler if he had any
specific questions regarding the two itens that were |isted
under DEED. He recognized that the issue was "enotional."

Ms. Pitney responded that the governor had tal ked about a
16 percent budget cut in recognition of declining oi
prices but wanted to institute the cuts over tine. She
contended that the budget including the items in the CS
reflected an 8 percent reduction in the operating budget
conpared to | ast year's budget.

1:55: 59 PM

Representative Gattis expressed her confusion over whether
the itenms in the CS reflected what the governor wanted or
was demandi ng or wer e i ncl uded to begi n budget
negoti ati ons.

Ms. Pitney comented that the bill reflected the governor's
priorities but was flexible to reach the goal of a funded
budget and recognized that the bill was "in the

| egi sl ature's court."”

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Co-Chair Neuman reiterated that the itens were the
governor's priorities but the legislature would decide
whet her to fund them or not.

Representative Gara asked about the Al aska Learning Network
(AKLN). He asked whether AKLN was funded in order to neet
the former governor's nerit scholarship policy to provide
access to the courses necessary to qualify for the
schol ar shi p.

Co-Chair Neuman requested that DEED supply additiona
information regarding the program |Representative Gra
offered to wthdraw the question. Co- Chai r Neuman
reiterated that the conmttee would examne each item in
greater depth in subsequent neetings.

Representative Gattis stated that education was her Finance
Subconmi ttee and hoped to have a further discussion to hear
why he replaced the funding for the itens her subcommittee
cut.

VALERI E DAVI DSON, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, spoke to the line itens for the Departnment
of Health and Social Services (DHSS) in the CS:

Children's Services Total: $1, 330, 500
Front Line Social Wrkers: $1, 000, 000
Fam |y Preservation: $330, 500

Departmental Support Services Total: $$1,175.000
Public Affairs $50, 000

Conmi ssioner's Ofice $125,000

Adm ni strative Support Services $875, 000

| nf ormati on Technol ogy Servi ces $125, 000

Agency-wi de Appropriation Total: $2,218, 500
Agency-w de Unal | ocated Appropriation: $2,218, 500

Comm ssi oner Davidson began with page 2, line 19, Front
Li ne Social Wrkers and reported that the amount would fund
seven social workers using Children Health |Insurance
Program (CH P) funding. She noved to line 20, and noted
that the restored funding for the Fam |y Preservation G ant
Program hel ped children remain in the honme as opposed to
out of honme placenents. She delineated that there were
currently a record nunber of 2,500 children in the state in
out of hone placenents. She turned to lines 21 through 27

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Depart nment al Suppor t Services and stated that t he
transaction reversed interagency transfers totaling $1.175
mllion. She continued with lines 28 through 30 and voiced
that the Agency-wi de Appropriation of $2.218.5 mnmillion
reversed an unal | ocated reduction.

2:01:56 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to the CH P funding for front
line social workers and asked what CH P funding was.
Comm ssi oner Davi dson relayed that CHP stood for
Children's Health Insurance Program She detailed that
previously the federal government would grant bonuses to
states for CH P enrollnent. Subsequently, the bonuses were
stopped. The funds were used for a variety of purposes and
sone funding remained. The $1 nmillion appropriation for
front line social workers was taken fromthe remaining CH P
bonus grants in order to help reduce the record nunber of
children in out of hone placenents.

Co- Chair Neuman asked whether the CHI P nobney was a |ong-
term fundi ng source. Conm ssioner Davidson responded in the
negati ve. Co- Chai r Neuman asked how the departnent
anticipated funding the positions after the CH P noney was
expended. Conm ssioner Davidson responded that it was the
departnment's hope that some tribal health organizations
that partner with DHSS and were able to provide services
through a program called 4-E would assist in reversing the
out of home pl acenment trend.

Co-Chair Neuman requested nore information on how the
department planned on supplanting the federal funds for the
soci al workers.

Co- Chair Thonpson referred to the original operating budget
and shared that the appropriation was in the anmount of $2
mllion in federal funding and added 20 front |ine socia
wor kers. The ampunt was reduced to $350 thousand for 3
front line social workers. He asked whether wth the
conbi ned appropriations fromthe CS and the CCS there woul d
be a total of 10 front |ine social workers. Conmm ssioner
Davi dson responded in the affirmative. Co-Chair Thonpson
poi nted out that the funding was not expected to continue
in future years.

2:06: 50 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler was not clear whether the funding for
the social workers in the CS was in addition to or included
the 3 positions funded in conference conmttee.

Ms. Pitney replied that the social worker positions funded
in the CS was in addition to the positions funded in CCS
HB72.

Co- Chair Neuman asked whether the funding included all of
the related equipnment necessary. Conm ssioner Davidson
explained that it would include some equipnment. Co-Chair
Neurman related that in prior years when he was Chair of the
House Finance DHSS Subconmittee he proposed $1.5 mllion
for 10 frontline social workers and $348 thousand for
equi pnent .

SANA EFI RD, ASS|I STANT COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, affirned the statenent.

Representative WIson asked whether the funding was
specifically for certified social workers or case workers.
Comm ssi oner Davi dson answered that the funding included a
variety of positions necessary besides licensed social
wor ker s. Representative WI son request ed i nformation
specifying the exact positions the social worker funding
woul d i ncl ude.

Representative Gara understood the CS budget was a "kick-
start effort” to drive budget negotiations.

Representative Gara nentioned a workload study that was
done a few years prior that concluded the Ofice of
Children's Services (OCS) was understaffed by 45 enpl oyees
and in the ensuing years the nunber of foster youth
i ncreased from approximately 1,800 to 2,500. He noted that
13 positions were added |ast year. He was certain that the
7 additional positions included in the CS was not
sufficient to solve the problens facing OCS. Commr ssioner
Davi dson answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Neuman asked for nore information to support the
need for the increase in social workers.

Vice-Chair Saddler wanted to reconcile the difference

between the social workers requested in CCS HB 72 and
anount requested in the CS

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



2:13: 07 PM

Ms. Pitney responded that the particular program was
supported by the adm nistration in HB 72 and the additiona
funding in the CS was "additive to the noney in HB 72."

Representative Pruitt surm sed that HB 1001 was an addendum
to CCS HB 72. He wondered what woul d happen if the governor
did veto CCS HB 72. He asked whether HB 1001 would becone
t he budget vehicle. He thought that was the source of the
commttee nmenber's confusion. Ms. Pitney replied that CSS
HB 72 was adopted but remai ned unfunded. She expounded that
HB 1001 was an entirely new budget that enconpassed the
conference commttee version and the changes reflected in
the CS. Subsequent to the introduction of HB 1001, Co-Chair
Neuman's staff and LFD suggested narrow ng the conversation
specifically to the changes from the CCS. The CS was
created as an addendum that mirrored any changes that
differed from the conference conmttee version. She voiced
that under the assunption that the CBR vote would happen
the changes adopted would "slide in." She reiterated that
the legislation was a vehicle to begin a "conprom se
di scussion” to arrive at a "funded budget."

Co-Chair Neuman noted that the scenario was up for
di scussion. He recounted that CCS HB 72 was adopted by the
| egi sl ature, the governor disagreed with sone of itens and
introduced a new piece of legislation to add back his
priorities.

Representative WIson remarked that the governor submtted
a new operating budget in HB 1001 and asked whether that
was the governor's intent. M. Pitney replied that the
governor's intent was to get a conpromse discussion
started to achieve a funded budget. Representative WI son
asked whether the governor did or did not intend to put a
new operating budget forward. Ms. Pitney responded that the
bill was nmerely a nmechanism to start a dialogue that would
end in conprom se and achi eve a funded budget. She remarked
that the adm nistration accepted the approach of the CS
versus a bill including the entire budget.

Co- Chai r Neurman r epeat ed hi s statenent s regar di ng
introduction of the CS that only included the governor's
priorities.

2:18: 50 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



Representative WIson declared that she would not vote to
increase the operating budget. She felt that the Finance
subcomm ttees "well vetted" the departnents budgets and
without a bill that included the entire budget in order to
"exchange" cuts for any of the priorities adopted, the CS
ended the discussion for her.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er announced t hat he agr eed W th
Representative WIlson and that "it was not clear"” how the
budget process was going to proceed and with what bill.

Ms. Pitney explained the change in the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR):

Adm ni stration and Support Services Total: $4,900, 000
North Sl ope Gas Commerci al i zati on: $4, 900, 000.

Ms. Pitney continued that an increnent was requested to
pursue gas conmercialization contracts. The entire request
was for $13 million and part of the armount was funded
t hrough Al aska Stand Al one Pipeline (ASAP). The amount in
the CS brought the funding back to the full funding |evel
requested in the governor's budget. She remarked that gas
comercialization was a huge revenue opportunity and a
"high priority for the governor." She continued with two
itens in the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS):

Al aska State Troopers Total: $500, 000
Al aska Wldlife Troopers Aircraft Section: $500, 000

Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault Total:
$1, 500, 000
Counci | on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assaul t
$1, 500, 000

Ms. Pitney noted that the first item restored partial
funding for the helicopter service located in Fairbanks.
The second item restored half of the funding for the
Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA).
The administration cut the funding to $1,500,000 and noved
it from the Governor's Ofice to DPS in the governor's
budget request. The fundi ng supported prevention prograns.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked who received the $1.5 mllion in
f undi ng. Ms. Pitney answered that the noney was
appropriated directly to the CDVSA and was focused on
prevention. Co-Chair Thonpson asked whether the funding

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



went through the Anchorage Police Departnment. M. Pitney
responded that the funding he cited was a capital budget
item awarded as a grant directly appropriated to the police
depart ment.

Representative Gara asked whether the $1.5 nillion the
adm nistration was trying to add back was included in the
governor's original proposal. M. Pitney responded in the
affirmati ve.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether the proposed $1.5 nillion
would restore the council's budget to $3 mllion. Ms.
Pitney replied that the CDVSA budget for prevention
prograns would anount to $1.5 mllion with adoption of the
CS. She informed the conmttee that the council had
operating funds in addition to prevention noney that
primarily funded grants for shelters.

Co-Chair Neuman asked for nore infornmation about the
council and its efficacy rate.

MARK LUI KEN, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND
PUBLI C FACI LI TI ES, di scussed t he Depart ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities' (DOT) itemin the CS

Mari ne H ghway System Total: $7, 000.000
Mari ne Vessel Operations $7, 000, 000

Comm ssi oner Luiken indicated that the increment on page 3,
line 21 allowed the departnent to maintain its current
cormitment to passengers based on the schedule that was
publ i shed on Cctober, 2014.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked whether the funding supported
exi sting reservations. Mark  Luiken answered in the
affirmative. Co-Chair Thonpson asked whether the funding
was a one-time increment. Mark Luiken answered in the
affirmative. He reported that the departnent would prepare
a much nore conservative schedule for FY 2017 at the |eve
of expected funding.

Co- Chair Neuman asked what the total budget was for the
Al aska Marine Hi ghway System Co-Chair Thonpson responded
that the total was $147 mllion. Co-Chair Neuman remarked
that $7 mllion equated to .5 percent of the marine
hi ghway's budget. He wondered why the cut could not be
absorbed by the departnent. Comm ssioner Luiken answered
that the cut wuld be absorbed through service cuts

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



beginning on July 1, 2015. Co-Chair Neunman requested nore
information regarding routes and scheduling. Comm ssioner
Lui ken stated that the options would be explored in the
next budget cycl e.

2:27: 49 PM

Ms. Pitney continued with the University of Al aska (UA
i tem

Uni versity of Al aska Total: $7, 000, 000
Budget Reductions/ Additions Systemw de: $7, 000, 000

Ms. Pitney offered that $7 million out of the $29.8 nillion
(8.1 percent) reduction was restored in the CS. The funding
in the CS would bring the reduction to $18.9 mllion which
represented 5 percent of the university's budget.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked whether the $7 mllion included
nmoney for the union university enployee contract COLA M.
Pitney responded that the contract funding for the
university was included in the CS wunder the contract
section (beginning on page 3, line 30). Vice-Chair Saddler
wondered what specific prograns the noney would fund. Ms.
Pitney responded that the Board of Regents was currently
maki ng decisions to determ ne which prograns would be cut
and added that many cuts would be necessary to reach the
$18.9 mllion threshold.

Co-Chair Neuman asked for further information on the
university's budget. He stated that the |egislature worked
hard to address the state's budget deficit and adopted a
budget that fell short of the three quarters vote required
to access the CBR He further reiterated the CS process. He
suggested that the CS would be a "tough sell” for the
| egi sl ature.

2:32:35 PM

HB 1001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

2:33: 08 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 2:33 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 30/ 15 1: 06 P. M



